
 

 

 
Date of despatch: Monday, 11 December 2017 

 
 
To the Members of Slough Borough Council 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING  
 

Dear Councillor, 
 

You are summoned to attend an Extraordinary Meeting of the Council of this 
Borough which will be held in the Meeting Room 1, Chalvey Community Centre  on  
Tuesday, 19th December, 2017 at 7.00 pm, when the business in the Agenda 
below is proposed to be transacted. 
 

Yours faithfully 
 

 
 

ROGER PARKIN 
Interim Chief Executive 

 
AGENDA 

 
Apologies for Absence 
 

  PAGE 
 

1.   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary or other 
Pecuniary or non pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at the 
meeting must declare that interest and, having regard to the 
circumstances described in Section 3 paragraphs 3.25 – 3.27 of the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter is 
discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with 
Paragraph 3.28 of the Code.  
 
The Mayor will ask Members to confirm that they do not have a 
declarable interest. 
 
All Members making a declaration will be required to complete a 
Declaration of Interests at Meetings form detailing the nature of their 
interest. 

 
 

 



 
  PAGE 

 

 

2.   Councillors’ Code of Conduct 
 

1 - 34 

3.   Appointments to Committees, Panels and Outside Bodies 
 

35 - 40 

4.   Designation of Monitoring Officer 
 

41 - 42 

5.   Head of Paid Service and Chief Executive Arrangements 
 

43 - 58 

6.   Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 

 

 It is recommended that the press and public be excluded 
from the remainder of the meeting as the item to be 
considered contains exempt information relating to 
individuals as defined in Paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 
12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 
 
 
 

 

PART II  
 

7.   Approval of Severance Payment to Interim Chief Executive 
 

59 - 62 

 
 

Press and Public 
 

You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an observer. You will 
however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items in the Part II agenda.  Please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer shown above for further details. 
 
The Council allows the filming, recording and photographing at its meetings that are open to the public.  By 
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings.  Anyone proposing to film, record or take photographs of 
a meeting is requested to advise the Democratic Services Officer before the start of the meeting.  Filming or 
recording must be overt and persons filming should not move around the meeting room whilst filming nor 
should they obstruct proceedings or the public from viewing the meeting.  The use of flash photography, 
additional lighting or any non hand held devices, including tripods, will not be allowed unless this has been 
discussed with the Democratic Services Officer. 
 

 
 



SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO:    Council   DATE:  19th December 2017 
  
CONTACT OFFICER:    Member Panel on the Constitution 
 Linda Walker, Interim Monitoring Officer  
 (01753 875008) 

Catherine Meek, Head of Democratic Services  
(For All Enquiries)  (01753) 875011 
 
WARD(S):   All 
 

PART I 
FOR DECISION 

 
COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

 To advise the Council about the amendments to the Councillors’ Code of Conduct to 
include guidance about Trustees obligations and updated procedural guidance in the 
light of recent experience.  

 

2. Recommendations 
 

The Council is requested to resolve that the revised Councillors’ Code of Conduct, 
attached at Appendix A, be approved. 
 

3.  Other Implications 
 
(a) Financial  
 
There are no financial implications of this report.  

 
(b) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications  
 
 The Localism Act 2011 places the Council under a statutory duty to establish an 
 ethical framework:  
 

• Under section 27(2) it must adopt a code of conduct dealing with the conduct 
that is expected of members and co-opted members when they are acting in that 
capacity, 
 

• Under section 29 (1) the Monitoring Officer must establish and maintain a 
members’ register of interests, 
 

• Under Section 28 (6) it must have in place arrangements under which 
allegations of breach of the code can be investigated and decisions made upon 
the allegations, 
 

• Under section 28(7) the arrangements put in place must include provision for the 
appointment of at least one Independent Person whose views are to be sought 
and taken into account by the Council before it makes its decision on allegations 

AGENDA ITEM 2

Page 1



which have been investigated and whose views upon an allegation may be 
sought by the Council at any other time and may be sought by a member who is 
the subject of an allegation. 

 
4.      Supporting Information 
 

Councillors’ Code of Conduct 
 

4.1  The Council has a statutory duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct 
for its elected and co-opted members.  The Localism Act 2011 made fundamental 
changes to the system of regulation of standards of conduct for elected and co-opted 
Councillors and for Parish Councils. 

 
4.2 The Council adopted a new Members’ Code of Conduct in 2012.  The Interim 

Monitoring Officer has recently amended the Code of Conduct and it was submitted 
to Full Council on 28th November.  A request was made for guidance to be included 
about Trustees obligations and some updated procedure guidance required as a 
result of recent experience.  
 

4.3  A copy of the revised Code of Conduct is attached at Appendix A.  The existing 
Code, as at Part 5.1 of the Constitution, can be viewed at:  

 http://www.slough.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=563&MId=5990&V
er=4&Info=1 
 
Consideration by Full Council 
 
Full Council considered the amended Code of Conduct on 28th November and asked 
for information to be added about Trustees’ obligations and for procedures to be 
updated in the light of recent experience. The revised Code of Conduct is set out in 
Appendix A.  

 
5. Conclusion  
 
 The Council is requested to consider and approve the amendments to the 

Councillors’ Code of Conduct.  
 

  6. Appendices Attached 
 
Appendix A – Revised Councillors’ Code of Conduct 

 

Page 2



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

Appendix A 

Part 5.1 Councillors’ Code of Conduct
[Amended  Version]

CONTENTS

Introduction

Part 1 Rules of Conduct

Section One 

Section Two 

Section Three 

Section Four  

Overarching Principles 

General Obligation 

Relationship with others 

Interests 

Part  2 The Complaints Process

Part  3 Investigation & Determination of Complaints

APPENDICES 

1.  Glossary 

2.  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests - Definition and Guidance 

3.  Declaration of Interests - Flow Chart 

4.  Code of Conduct for Members - Declaration of Interests at Meetings Form 

5.  Declaration of Receipt/Offer of Gifts or Hospitality 

6.   Predetermination / Predisposition - guidance 

7.  Request for a Dispensation 

8.   Councillors duties towards Trusts 

9.   Members Complaints Procedure Flow Chart 

10.  Members Complaints Assessment Criteria 

Page 3



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

INTRODUCTION 

Purpose of the Code

The Localism Act 2011 requires this Council to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct by its Members and Co-opted Members. In discharging its duty, the Council is 
required to adopt a Code of Conduct which sets out the conduct expected of its 
Councillors. 

The Council’s Code of Conduct is divided into 2 sections: 

1.  the Rules of Conduct 
2.  the Complaints process 

The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to assist all Members in the discharge of their 
obligations to the Council, to their constituents and to the public at large by: 

(a) establishing the standards and principles of conduct expected of all Members in 
undertaking their duties. 

(b) ensuring public confidence in the standards expected of all Members and in the 
commitment of the Council to upholding the Code through an open and 
transparent process. 

Parish Councils

Each Parish Council is also required to adopt a Code of Conduct. If you wish to inspect 
a Parish Council’s Code of Conduct, you should inspect any website operated by the 
Parish Council or request the parish clerk to allow you to inspect the Parish Council’s 
Code of Conduct 

Page 4



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

PART 1:  RULES OF CONDUCT 

The code applies to Members and co opted Members of Slough Borough Council when 
they are acting in that capacity. 

This means that it applies whenever you (a) conduct the business of the Council 
(including the business of your office as an elected Councillor or co opted Member); (b) 
act, claim to act or give the impression you are acting as a representative of the 
Council.

SECTION 1 – OVERARCHING PRINCIPLES

This code is intended to be consistent with Nolan’s Seven Principles of Public Life and 
should be read in the light of those principles. These are set out below. 

Nolan’s Seven Principles of Public Life

Principle 1.  Selflessness

Holders of public office should take decisions solely in terms of the public interest. 
They should not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits for 
themselves, their family, or their friends. 

Principle 2.  Integrity

Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or other 
obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might influence them in the 
performance of their official duties. 

Principle 3.  Objectivity

In carrying out public business, including making public appointments, awarding 
contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of public 
office should make choices on merit. 

Principle 4.  Accountability

Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to the public 
and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office. 

Principle 5.  Openness

Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the decisions and 
actions that they take. They should give reasons for their decisions and restrict 
information only when the wider public interest clearly demands. 

Principle 6.  Honesty

Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to their 
public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects 
the public interest. 

Page 5



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

Principle 7.  Leadership

Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by leadership and 
example. 

SECTION 2 – GENERAL OBLIGATIONS

When acting in your role as Member of the Council, you must ensure that you conduct 
yourself in such a manner that complies with the Seven Principles of Public Life. These 
Principles will be taken into account when considering the investigation and 
determination of any allegations of breaches of the rules of conduct. 

2.1 You must treat others with respect, including Council officers and other elected 
Members. 

2.2 You must not bully any person (including specifically any Council employee) and 
you must not intimidate or improperly influence, or attempt to intimidate or 
improperly influence, any person who is involved in any complaint about any 
alleged breach of this Code of Conduct. 

2.3 You must not do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the 
impartiality of anyone who works for or on behalf of the Council. 

2.4 You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded 
as bringing the Council, or your office as a Member of the Council, into disrepute. 

2.5 You must not use or attempt to use your position as a Member improperly to 
confer on or secure for yourself or any other person any advantage or 
disadvantage. 

2.6 You have a duty to uphold the law including the general law against discrimination 

2.7 When using or authorising the use by others of the resources of the Council, you 
must act in accordance with the Council’s reasonable requirements (as set out in 
such protocol as it may adopt from time to time for these purposes) and must 
ensure they are not used for party political purposes. 

2.8 You must not prevent, or attempt to prevent, another person from gaining access 
to information to which they are entitled by law. 

2.9 You must not disclose information which is given to you in confidence, or 
information which you believe or ought reasonably to be aware is of a confidential 
nature, unless: 

(a) You have the consent of a person authorised to give it; or 
(b) You are required by law to do so; or 
(c) The disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining 

professional advice, provided that the third party agrees not to disclose 
the information to any other person; or 

Page 6



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

(d) The disclosure is reasonable and in the public interest and made in good 
faith. 

SECTION 3 – RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHERS

3.1 Members must ensure that all contact with Council Officers will be through a 
Director/Assistant Director/Third Tier Officer in the first instance. A distinction is 
made between contacts with junior staff as part of day to day enquires and 
Council business and contact by Members where contentious or political issues 
may arise. 

Examples of day to day contact  with
Junior  Officers.

Examples of Matters that should  
be addressed  at Director/Service 
Lead/Third Tier

Requests for information on timescales of 
applications e.g. planning applications, 
licensing, housing allocation

Specific complaints about not granting 
planning consent. 

Complaints about the application of 
eligibility criteria for housing

Requests for routine information on a case 
or issue on behalf of a resident, i.e. who is 
dealing with a case or issues when is it 
likely to be resolved

Application of threshold or entitlement to 
Adult Social Care Services.

Requests for information on how processes 
work and how services are run.

Suggestions for improving services. 
Observations on service efficiency and 
effectiveness.

SECTION 4 – INTERESTS

4.1 Registration of interests

You must register in the Council’s Register of Members Interests information 
about your registerable personal interests. In this Code of Conduct ‘your 
registerable personal interests’ means: 

(a) any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest as set out in Appendix 2; or 

(b) any other interest held by you as set out in Appendix 2 

Page 7



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

You must register information about your registerable personal interests by 
giving written notice to the Monitoring Officer, who maintains the Register, 
within 28 days of: 

• your appointment as a Member of the Council; and 

• any change taking place in your registerable personal interests. 

Note: Failure without reasonable excuse to register a Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest is a criminal offence under section 34 Localism Act 2011 as well as 
being a breach of this code. 

4.2 Sensitive  interests

Where you think that disclosure of the details of any of your registerable 
personal interests could lead to you, or a person connected with you, being 
subject to violence or intimidation, the Monitoring Officer may at your request 
make a note on the Register that you have a personal interest, details of 
which are withheld. 

4.3 Other interests

You have a “non-disclosable pecuniary interest or non-pecuniary interest” in an 
item of business of your authority where – 

- a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the wellbeing or financial standing of you or a member of your family or a person 
with whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect 
the majority of the Council Tax payers, rate payers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the authority’s 
administrative area, or 

- it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests listed in the Table in Appendix
2 of this Code, but in respect of a member of your family (other than a “relevant 
person”) or a person with whom you have a close association and that interest is 
not a disclosable pecuniary interest or non-pecuniary interest in that item, you 
must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest at or 
before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. 

4.4 Declaration of Members Interests

All Members are required to disclose as appropriate any personal and personal 
prejudicial interests in matters that arise at meetings which might influence their 
judgement or which could be perceived (by a reasonable member of the public) 
to do so. Members should declare: 

(i) Relevant personal direct and indirect pecuniary interests; 

(ii) Relevant direct and indirect pecuniary interests of close family members of 
which Members could reasonably be expected to be aware; and 

(iii) Relevant personal non-pecuniary interests, including those which arise from 
membership of clubs and other organisations. 

Page 8



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

(iv) Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 
management and to which you are appointed or nominated by your 
authority. 

(v) Any body exercising a function of a public nature, directed to charitable 
purposes or whose principal purpose includes the influence of public 
opinion or policy. 

(vi) Your wellbeing or financial position or the wellbeing or financial position of a 
member of your family with whom you have a close association. 

The personal interest becomes prejudicial if a member of the public with knowledge of 
the relevant facts would reasonably regard it as so significant that it is likely to prejudice 
your judgement of the public interest. A Member’s DPIs are always prejudicial. 

A Member must observe the restrictions the Council places on their involvement in 
matters where they have a pecuniary or non pecuniary interest as defined by the 
Council. 

Members should seek advice from the Monitoring Officer with regards to interests 
arising from Council controlled Trusts. 

4.5 Interests  arising  in relation  to Overview and Scrutiny Committee  and its
Panels

Members have a prejudicial interest in any business before an Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee of the Council (or Panel) where 

(a) that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) or 
action taken by the Council’s Cabinet or another committee, sub-committee, 
joint committee or joint sub-committee; and 

(b) at the time the decision was made or action was taken, you were a Member 
of the Cabinet, committee, sub-committee, joint committee or joint sub- 
committee mentioned in paragraph (a) and you were present when that 
decision was made or action was taken. 

In such a case, provided the public have a right to speak at such a meeting, as a 
Member you are able to make any representations or answer any questions once 
you have declared the nature of the interest you have. You must then withdraw 
from the room. 

4.6 Action  following declaration

If you are acting as a decision maker at a meeting where you have an interest in 
the matter being discussed or that arises during the course of the meeting you 
need to consider if your interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest. 
If it is 

(a) you must withdraw from the room where the meeting considering the 
business is being held, unless a written dispensation has been granted 

(b) you are not permitted to participate in any discussion of a matter that relates 
to your DPI at the meeting 

Page 9



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

(c) you are not permitted to participate in any vote on the matter where you 
have a DPI 

In the case of any other Pecuniary or Non Pecuniary Interest, the Committee 
Member will need to consider whether a member of the public with knowledge of 
the relevant facts would reasonably regard the interest as so significant that it is 
likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. If you believe this to be 
the case or you are advised that this is the case then that Member must:- 

(a) disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the meeting; 

(b) withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting considering the 
business is being held. 

However, provided the public have a right to speak at such a meeting the 
Member is able to make representations or answer any questions when the 
nature of the interest has been declared. The Member must then withdraw from 
the room. 

See Appendix 3 for the Declaration of Interests Flow Chart and Appendix 4 for 
the Declaration of Receipt of Gifts or Hospitality.

4.7 Dispensations from the restriction from participating voting in meetings

This provision applies to a situation where a Member or Members have an 
interest, which prevents them from taking part in a decision but they feel they 
ought to be able to participate or that it is necessary to allow them to 
participate in the interests of proper decision making, as explained below. 

One or more Members may apply for a dispensation from the requirement not 
to participate in or vote in respect of a matter at a meeting by written request to 
the Monitoring Officer, so that they are able to participate in respect of that 
matter at the meeting. 

The Monitoring Officer (or in his/her absence the Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
may agree the dispensation on behalf of the Council, where s/he considers, 
after having had regard to all relevant circumstances such as follows: 

(a) that without the dispensation the number of persons prohibited by section 
31(4) of the Act from participating in any particular business would be so 
great a proportion of the body transacting the business as to impede the 
transaction of the business, 

(b) that without the dispensation the representation of different political 
groups on the body transacting any particular business would be so upset 
as to alter the likely outcome of any vote relating to the business, 

i.  that granting the dispensation would be in the interests of persons living 
in the Council’s area, 

ii. that without the dispensation each Member of the Cabinet would be 
prohibited y section 31(4) of the Act from participating in any particular 

Page 10



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

business to be transacted by the Cabinet, or 

iii. that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation. 

If granted the dispensation will be granted by the Monitoring Officer in writing 
and citing the ground or grounds on which it is agreed and it will be published 
on the Council’s website within 7 days of the decision. 

The dispensation must be for a fixed time not exceeding a period beyond the 
next Council elections and will normally cover only a specific matter or 
meeting. 

A general dispensation is granted to all Members to be present, speak and vote 
where they would otherwise have a DPI on the grounds that it is appropriate to 
grant a dispensation to allow all Members to participate fully in the following 
matters: 

(a) Housing: where the Member (or spouse or partner) holds a tenancy or lease 
with the Council as long as the matter does not only relate to the Member’s 
particular tenancy or lease*. 

(b) School meals or school transport and travelling expenses where the Member
is a parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or is a parent
governor of a school, provided that the matter does not only relate to the 
particular school which the child attends. 

(c) Housing Benefit: where the Member (or spouse or partner) directly receives 
housing benefit in relation to their own circumstances. 

(d) Allowances, travelling expenses, payments or indemnity for Members (this 
is included for the avoidance of doubt even though they are not a DPI) 

(e) Setting the Council Tax or a Precept; and 

(f) Decisions in relation to Council Tax Benefit. 

* Any general housing related dispensations afforded to Members will not negate 
the need for Members to declare a personal or prejudicial interest; particularly 
where the Member or spouse holds a tenancy or lease with the Council and a 
matter requiring a decision may/will impact their own Council tenancy. 

For example, in cases where the matter particularly affected their local 
neighbourhood and was considered to affect their own tenancy more than other 
people in the authority’s area, the Member should consider whether it is 
appropriate to participate in the decision making process. 

For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure adherence to the Member Code of 
Conduct, Members should seek guidance from the Council's Monitoring Officer. 

It is recommended that the general dispensation applies until the next election 
(May 2018) and that the Council considers granting general dispensations 
annually at its annual meeting. 

Page 11



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

Dispensations for Council Tax relate to Members’ DPIs, and do not affect a 
Member’s obligation under Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992 to declare and not vote if they are two months or more in arrears with their 
Council Tax when voting on setting the Council’s budget. 

The Council can grant a dispensation to enable Members to participate in certain 
circumstances and the Monitoring Officer is authorised to determine written 
requests for a dispensation. A form to request a dispensation is attached at 
Appendix 6. 

4.8 Gifts and Hospitality

You must within 28 days of receipt, notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any 
gift, benefit or hospitality with a value in excess of £25 which you have accepted 
as a Member from any person or body other than the borough Council. 

The Monitoring Officer will place the notification on the public register of gifts and 
hospitality. 

4.9 Updating  the Register of Interests

You must within 28 days of becoming aware of any new disclosable pecuniary 
interest or change to any disclosable pecuniary interest already registered 
provide written notification to the Monitoring Officer via an amendment form 
obtainable from Democratic Services. 

4.10 Predetermination and Bias

A Member is not taken to have had, or to have appeared to have had, a closed 
mind when making/acting as a decision maker, merely because 

(i) they had previously done anything that directly or indirectly indicated what 
view, they as decision maker would or might take in relation to a matter and 

(ii) the matter was relevant to the decision being taken. 

When making a decision, Members must consider the matter before them, with 
an open mind and on the facts before the meeting at which the decision is to be 
taken. 

Where a Member has been involved in campaigning in a political role on an 
issue, provided this does not impact on a Member’s personal and/or professional 
life, a Member is not be prohibited from participating in a decision in their political 
role as Member. 

Members must not place themselves under any financial or other obligation to 
outside individuals or organisations that might seek to influence their 
performance of their official duties. 

Members who sit as Committee Members need to be aware that when they have 
an interest in the matter being discussed or being decided, the role as a decision 
maker is subject to extra scrutiny. 

Page 12



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

Members who are not Committee Members, but are attending a Committee to 
speak, also need to be aware that if they have an interest in the matter they 
are speaking on, their role as an interested Member is also subject to extra 
scrutiny. 

Members should seek advice in advance of a meeting when a matter is known 
or should reasonably have been known to involve an interest affecting a 
Committee Member and complete the Declaration of Interests at Meetings 
Form. Guidance on predetermination is set out at Appendix 6 to the Code. 

4.11 Corporate Trustees 

The Council may have a variety of roles in relation to charitable trusts, including 
that of corporate trustee. The Council is the trustee of the charitable trusts, 
Councillors are not. The Councillors (and Council Officers) manage the Trustees 
affairs on behalf of the council. As Councillors are not trustees they do not have 
the same responsibilities and liabilities as a trustee. Although Councillors are 
not trustees they should still be mindful of the duties of trustees set out in the 
guidance at appendix 8. 

Page 13



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

PART 2:  THE COMPLAINTS PROCESS 

5.1 This Part of the Code of Conduct sets out how the Council will deal with 
allegations of a failure to comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct. 

5.2 The Monitoring Officer may investigate a specific matter relating to a Member's 

adherence to the Rules of Conduct under the Code or a complaint made against 

a member for breach of the Council’s Code of Conduct. Members shall 

cooperate, at all stages, with any such investigation by or under the authority of 

the Council. No Member shall lobby a member of the Audit & Corporate 

Governance Committee in a manner calculated or intended to influence its 

consideration of an alleged breach of this Code.  

Complaints against Members 
�

5.3 All complaints against members must be in writing and on the Council’s 
prescribed form. The Council will not normally investigate anonymous 
complaints, unless there is a clear public interest in doing so. 

5.4 The “Member’s Complaint’s Procedure Flowchart” , contained at Appendix 5, 
sets out the process the Monitoring Officer will follow in relation to complaints 
against members. 

5.5 The Monitoring Officer will consider complaints according to the Code of 
Conduct’s “Member’s Complaint Assessment Criteria” contained at Appendix of 
the Code.  Whilst complainants must be confident that complaints are taken 
seriously and dealt with appropriately, deciding to investigate a complaint 
or to take further action will cost both public money and officers’ and 
members’ time.  This is an important consideration where the complaint is 
relatively minor. 

5.6 The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of a complaint within 5 working 
days of receiving it.  The Subject Member will be advised that a complaint has 
been made, together with a short summary of the complaint and the name of the 
complainant unless they have indicated that they wish to remain anonymous.  

5.7 The Monitoring Officer will determine every complaint received and, may after as 
the Monitoring Officer may deem appropriate consultation with the Independent 
Person, take a decision as to whether it merits formal investigation. This decision 
will normally be taken within 14 days of receipt of a complaint. Where the 
Monitoring Officer has taken a decision, he will inform the Complainant and the 
Subject Member of his decision and the reasons for that decision. 

5.8 In appropriate cases, the Monitoring Officer may seek to resolve the complaint 
informally, without the need for a formal investigation. The Monitoring Officer will 
take account of this in deciding whether the complaint merits formal investigation. 

Page 14



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

5.9 If the complaint identifies criminal conduct or breach of other regulation by any 
person, the Monitoring Officer has the power to call in the Police and other 
regulatory agencies. 

Page 15



�art 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

PART 3: INVESTIGATION & DETERMINATION OF COMPLAINTS

6.1 If the Monitoring Officer decides that a complaint merits formal investigation, he 
may either appoint an Investigating Officer to investigate the complaint or 
investigate the complaint himself. 

6.2 The Investigating Officer would normally write to the Subject Member. 

6.3 The Subject Member will be provided with a copy of the complaint. The Subject 
Member will be requested to provide any relevant information the Investigating 
Officer needs to investigate the Complaint. 

6.4 In exceptional cases, where it is appropriate to keep the identity of the Complainant 
confidential or disclosure of details of the complaint to the Subject Member might 
prejudice the investigation, the Monitoring Officer withhold the Complainant’s 
details or delay notifying the Subject Member until the investigation has progressed 
sufficiently. 

6.5 At the end of his/her investigation, the Investigating Officer/Monitoring Officer will 
produce a draft report.  This draft will be sent in confidence to the Complainant and 
the Subject Member, to give them an opportunity to identify any matter in that draft 
report which is either factually incorrect or which may require further consideration. 
Having received and taken account of any comments on the Draft Report, the 
Investigating Officer will send the Final Report to the Monitoring Officer. 

6.6 The Monitoring Officer will review the Investigating Officer’s report and, if he is 
satisfied that the Investigating Officer’s report is sufficient, the Monitoring Officer 
will write to the Subject Member and the Complainant notifying them of either : 

(a) he is satisfied that no further action is required, and provide them both a 
copy of the Investigating Officer’s final report, or  

(b) following review of the Investigating Officer’s report that either the complaint 
will be  

(i) sent for determination before a Standards Determination Sub 
Committee or,  

(ii) after consulting the Independent Person, seek a local resolution. 

Local Resolution 

6.7 The Monitoring Officer may consider that the matter can reasonably be resolved 
without the need for a hearing. In such a case, he/she will consult with the 
Independent Person and the Complainant and seek to agree fair resolution which 
also helps to ensure higher standards of conduct for the future. Such resolution 
may include the Subject Member accepting that his/her conduct was unacceptable 
and offering an apology, and/or other remedial action by the Council. If the Subject 
Member complies with the suggested resolution, the Monitoring Officer will report 
the matter to the Audit & Corporate Governance Committee for information, but will 
take no further action.  

Process for the Determination of Complaints 

Page 16



�art 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

6.8 If the Monitoring Officer considers that local resolution is not appropriate, then the 
Monitoring Officer will convene a Standards Determination Sub Committee to 
determine the complaint.  It will conduct a hearing which will decide whether the 
member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and if so, whether to take 
any action in respect of the member. 

6.9 The set up and structure of the Standards Determination Sub-Committee is 
provided for by the Council’s Constitution 

6.10 The Monitoring Officer will conduct a “pre-hearing process”, requiring the member 
to give his/her response to the Investigating Officer’s report, in order to identify 
what is likely to be agreed and what is likely to be in contention at the hearing, and 
may issue directions as to the manner in which the hearing will be conducted. 

Conduct of a Sub Committee hearing  

6.11 The Investigating Officer will present his/her report, call such witnesses as he/she 
considers necessary and make representations to substantiate his/her conclusion 
that the Subject Member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct. The 
Subject Member will then have an opportunity to give his/her evidence, to call 
witnesses and to make representations to the Sub Committee as to why he/she 
considers that he/she did not fail to comply with the Code of Conduct.  

6.12 If the  Sub Committee, with the benefit of any advice from the Independent Person, 
concludes  

(a) that the Subject Member did not fail to comply with the Code of Conduct, then 
they can dismiss the complaint  

(b) that the Subject Member did fail to comply with the Code of Conduct, the 
Chair will inform the Subject Member of this finding and the Sub Committee  
will then consider what action, if any, the Sub Committee should take as a 
result of the Subject Member’s failure to comply with the Code of Conduct. In 
doing this, the Sub Committee will give the Subject Member an opportunity to 
make representations to the Sub Committee and will consult the Independent 
Person, but will then decide what action, if any, to take in respect of the 
matter. 

6.13 The Council has delegated to the Sub Committee powers to take action in respect 
of individual members as may be necessary to promote and maintain high 
standards of conduct. Accordingly the Sub Committee may authorise the 
Monitoring Officer to – 

(a) Publish any findings in respect of the Subject Member’s conduct;   

(b) Report the findings to the Audit & Corporate Governance Committee for 
information; 

(c) Recommend to the Subject Member’s Group Leader (or in the case of un-
grouped members, recommend to Council or to Committees) that he/she be 
removed from any or all Committees or Sub-Committees of the Council; 

(d) Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the Subject Member be 
removed from the Cabinet, or removed from particular Portfolio 
responsibilities; 

(e) Arrange training for the Subject Member; 

Page 17



�art 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

(f) Remove from all outside appointments to which the Subject Member has been 
appointed or nominated by the Council;  

(g) Withdraw facilities provided to the member by the Council, such as a 
computer, website and/or email and Internet access; or 

(h) Exclude the Subject Member from the Council’s offices or other premises, with 
the exception of meeting rooms as necessary for attending Council, 
Committee and Sub-Committee meetings. 

6.14 The Sub Committee has no power to suspend or disqualify the Sub Member or to 
withdraw members’ or special responsibility allowances. 

6.15 At the end of the hearing, the Chairman will state the decision of the Sub 
Committee as to whether the member failed to comply with the Code of Conduct 
and as to any actions which the Sub Committee resolves to take. 

6.16 The Monitoring Officer will issue a decision notice, in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Sub Committee.  The decision notice will be sent to the 
Complainant and the Subject Member.  Thereafter a summary of the decision may 
be available for public inspection and the decision will be reported to the next 
convenient meeting of the Audit & Corporate Governance Committee. 

Appeals 

6.17 There is no right of appeal against a decision of the Monitoring Officer or of the 
Standards Determination Sub Committee to the Council.

Independent Person 

6.18 The Independent Person is invited to attend all meetings of the Sub Committee and 
his/her views are sought and taken into consideration before the Sub Committee 
takes any decision on whether the member’s conduct constitutes a failure to 
comply with the Code of Conduct and as to any action to be taken following a 
finding of failure to comply with the Code of Conduct.

Revision of these arrangements 

6.19 In the interests of fairness, the Monitoring Officer may vary any of these 
arrangements as appropriate.  The Chair of the Standards Determination Sub 
Committee may depart from the arrangements where he/she considers that it is 
expedient to do so in order to secure the effective and fair consideration of any 
matter.

�

Page 18



�art 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

  

Page 19



�art 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

APPENDIX 1 

GLOSSARY 

In this Code the following words will have the following meanings:— 

“Authority” means Slough Borough Council 

“Council” means Slough Borough Council 

“Parish Council” means the following Parish Councils: 

Britwell Parish Council, 

Colnbrook with Poyle Parish Council, 

Wexham Court Parish Council 

“Code of Conduct” section 1 part 1 of the Code of Conduct also referred to as the 
“Rules”. 

“Code of Conduct  Protocol” means the document entitled 

“Independent Person” The Independent Person is a person who complies with the 

requirements section 28 Localism Act 2011. 

“Meeting” means any meeting of— 

(a) The authority; 

(b) The executive of the authority; 

(c) Any of the authority’s or its executive’s committees, sub- 
committees, joint committees, joint sub-committees, or area 
committees; 

Whether or not the press and public are excluded from the 
meeting in question by virtue of a resolution of Members 

“Member” means a co-opted Member or an appointed Member of Slough 
Borough Council 

“Co-opted Member” means a co-opted Member of Slough Borough Council 

“Subject Member” means a Member who is the subject of a complaint for a breach of 
the Councillors Code of Conduct 

“Sensitive Information” means information whose availability for inspection by the public 

creates, or is likely to create, a serious risk that you or a person 

connected to you may be subject to violence or intimidation. 

“7 Principles” means the general principles of conduct identified by the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life in its First Report, namely: 
Selflessness, Integrity, Objectivity, Accountability, Openness, 
Honesty, Leadership. 

Page 20



�art 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

APPENDIX 2

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS 
DEFINITION AND GUIDANCE NOTES

The Localism Act 2011 provides that this will cover the interests not just of the Member, 
but also his/her spouse, civil partner or person with whom he/she lives as if they were 
spouses or civil partners, in so far as the Member is aware of his/her partner’s interests. 

These notes give general guidance on what items Members should include on the 
disclosable pecuniary interests form. The onus is on the individual Member to make 
their own judgement about making a declaration and they should not rely on direction 
from an officer, though if in doubt they can seek advice. 

Disclosable Pecuniary  Interest Guidance

Employment, office, trade, profession
or vocation
Any employment, office, trade, profession 
or vocation carried on for profit or gain.

You should show every employment, 
office, trade, profession or vocation that 
you and your spouse/partner receive 
remuneration for other than simply 
repayment of expenses – a good example 
is what you would have to declare for 
income tax purposes. 

Give a short description of the activity 
concerned; for example ‘Computer 
Operator’ or ‘Accountant’. 

Where you hold an office, give the name of 
the person or body which appointed you. In 
case of a public office, this will be the 
authority which pays you.

Sponsorship
Any payment or provision of any other 
financial benefit (other than from the 
relevant authority) made or provided 
within the relevant period in respect of 
any expenses incurred in carrying out 
duties as a Member or towards election 
expenses. This includes any payment or 
financial benefit from a trade union within 
the meaning of the Trade Union and 
Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 
1992.

You should declare the name of any 
person or body who has made any 
payments to you towards your expenses 
as a Councillor or towards your election 
expenses. You do not need to declare the 
amounts of any payments, only the name 
of the person or body making them. 

It refers to payment of election expenses 
by a third party – you do not need to 
declare if you pay your election expenses 
yourself. This would usually mean a 
political party at election time.

Page 21



�art 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

Contracts
Any contract which is made between the 
relevant person (or a body in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest) 
and the relevant authority – 

(a) Under which goods or services are to 
be provided or works are to be executed; 
and 
(b) Which has not been fully discharged.

You should list any contract made between 
yourself or your spouse/partner or a body 
in which either of you have a beneficial 
interest and Slough Borough Council (or an 
organisation contracted to carry out 
business on its behalf):- 
(a) under which goods or services are to 
be provided or works are to be executed; 
and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land
Any beneficial interest in land which is 
within the area of the relevant authority.

You should include any land and buildings 
in the area of the Borough in which you or 
your spouse/partner have a beneficial 
interest. You should give the address or a 
brief description to identify it. 

If you live in the Borough you should 
include your home under this heading 
whether as owner or lessee. 

You should also include any property from 
which you receive rent, or of which you are 
the mortgagee. 

The Monitoring Officer has also advised 
that any land in the Borough area in the 
ownership of a charity or organisation of 
which you or your spouse/partner are a 
trustee should also be included in this 
section. 

“Land” also includes any buildings or parts 
of buildings.

Licences
Any licence (alone or jointly with others) 
to occupy land in the area of the relevant 
authority for a month or longer.

You should include land in the area of the 
Borough which you or your spouse/partner 
have a right to occupy, but neither own nor 
have tenancy of. You should give the 
address or a brief description to identify it. 

“Land” includes any buildings or parts of 
buildings.

Corporate  Tenancies
Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 

(a) The landlord is the relevant 
authority; and 

(b) The tenant is a body in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial 
interest.

Page 22



�art 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

Securities
Any beneficial interest in securities of a 
body where – 

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has 
a place of business or land in the area 
of the relevant authority; and 

(b) Either – 
(i) The total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or 
(ii) If the share capital of that body is 
of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any 
one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class 

You should list the names of any 
companies, industrial and provident 
societies, co-operative societies, or other 
bodies corporate that (to your knowledge) 
are active in the Borough and in which you 
or your spouse/partner have a substantial 
interest. You do not need to show the 
extent of your interest. 

You have a substantial interest if you own 
shares or other securities in the company 
with a nominal value of more than £25,000 
or more than 1/100th of the issued share or 
securities. If there are several classes of 
shares or securities, the fraction of 1/100th 
applies to any of these classes. 

The company or body corporate is active in 
the Borough if it has land or a place of 
business in the Borough. 

Page 23



�art 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

Pecuniary and Non Pecuniary Information to be registered

Membership of other bodies

a. Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 
management and to which you are appointed or nominated by the Council. 

b. Any body exercising functions of a public nature of which you are a member or in a 
position of general control or management. 

c. Any body directed to charitable purposes of which you are a member or in a 
position of general control or management. 

d. Any body one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion 
or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a member or 
in a position of general control or management. 

Page 24



APPENDIX 3 

Declaring Interests Flowchart, Questions to ask yourself 

Breaching those parts identified as a disclosable pecuniary interest is potentially a criminal 
offence. 

Helpful Reminders for Members 

• Is your register of interests up to date? 

• In particular, have you declared to the Monitoring Officer all disclosable pecuniary 
interests? 

• Have you checked the register to ensure they have been recorded correctly? 

When should you declare an interest at a meeting? 

• What matters are being discussed at the meeting: 

Does the business to be transacted at the meeting

• Relate to; or 

• Is likely to affect 

any of your registered interests Disclosable Pecuniary Interests include your interests and those of: 

• Your spouse or civil partner 

• A person you are living with as husband/wife or as a civil partner 

Where you are aware that this other person has the interest. 
Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer about disclosable pecuniary interests. 

What is a non-disclosable pecuniary interest or a Non-Pecuniary Interest? – this is an interest which is not a 
disclosure pecuniary interest (as defined) but is nonetheless so significant that a member of the public with knowledge 
of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard to be so significant that it would materially impact upon your judgement 
of the public interest. 

DPI Non-DPI 

If the interest is not already in the register you must 
(unless the interest has been agreed by the Monitoring 

Officer to be sensitive) disclose the existence and 
nature of the interest to the meeting. 

  

Declare the nature and extent of your interest 
including enough detail to allow a member of the 

public to understand its nature.  You should declare 
the interest and decide whether you can properly 
speak and remain in the meeting or should not 

participate further.. If the interest is not entered in the register and is not the 
subject of a pending notification you must within 28 
days notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for 

inclusion in the register. not participate further.. 

  

Unless you have received dispensation upon previous application from the Monitoring Officer, you must:
- Not participate, or participate further, in any discussion of the matter at a meeting; 
- Not participate in any vote or further vote taken at the meeting; and 
- Leave the room while the item is being considered/voted upon 

If you are a Cabinet Member they may make arrangements for the matter to be dealt with by a third person 
but take no further step. 

Page 25



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

APPENDIX 4 

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS DECLARATION OF 
INTERESTS AT MEETINGS

This form should be completed by Members who declare an interest at any meeting of 
the Authority, the Executive of the Authority, or any of the Authority’s or its Executive’s 
Committees, Sub-Committees Joint Committees or Area Committees. 

Name of Member ................................................................................................. 

Meeting :...............................................................     Date:  .............................. 

Agenda Item: ………………………………………….   Time: …………. 

Type of Interest declared (Please tick as appropriate) 

Personal Interest
A Member with a personal interest in any matter may remain, speak and vote when the 
matter is considered. 

Personal/Prejudicial Interest       
A Member with a Prejudicial Interest must:- 

• withdraw from the room where the meeting is being held wherever it becomes apparent that the 
matter is being considered at that meeting. 

•   not seek improperly to influence a decision about the matter. 

[Unless you are at a meeting where members of the public have a right to address the meeting in 
which case Members have the same rights as an ordinary member of the public but must take not 
part or have any role in the decision making process.]

Note:    A Member’s Disclosable Pecuniary Interests are always prejudicial. 

Nature/Detail of Interest 
............................................................................................................................. ……….

......................................................................................................................................................... …………

......................................................................................................................................................... …………

......................................................................................................................................................... …………

......................................................................................................................................................... …………

Action to be taken following declaration (tick as appropriate) 

Withdraw from meeting 

Remain and speak 

Remain and speak and vote 

Signed:  ...............................................................…  Date:  .............................. 
This form, once completed, will be available for inspection, on request during office hours, by any Member of the Council or member of 

Page 26



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

the public.

APPENDIX 5

To:  The Monitoring Officer

DECLARATION OF RECEIPT/OFFER OF GIFTS OR HOSPITALITY

Name of Member

What was the gift or hospitality?  

What is your best estimate of its market 
value or cost?

Who provided it?  

When and where did you receive it?  

Did you accept it and were there any 
special circumstances justifying 
acceptance of this gift or hospitality?

Signed Date

Page 27



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

APPENDIX 6 

�

�

The Council often has to make controversial decisions that affect people adversely and 

this can place individual members in a difficult position. They are expected to represent 

the interests of their constituents and political party and have strong views but it is also 

a well established legal principle that members who make these decisions must not be 

biased nor must they have pre-determined the outcome of the decision. This is 

especially so in “quasi judicial” decisions in planning and licensing committees. 

This Note seeks to provide guidance on what is legally permissible and when members 

may participate in decisions. It should be read alongside the Code of Conduct. 

Predisposition 

Predisposition is lawful. Members may have strong views on a proposed decision, and 

may have expressed those views in public, and still participate in a decision. This will 

include political views and manifesto commitments. The key issue is that the member 

ensures that their predisposition does not prevent them from consideration of all the 

other factors that are relevant to a decision, such as committee reports, supporting 

documents and the views of objectors. In other words, the member retains an “open 

mind”. 

Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 confirms this position by providing that a decision 

will not be unlawful because of an allegation of bias or pre-determination “just because” 

a member has done anything that would indicate what view they may take in relation to 

a matter relevant to a decision. However, if a member has done something more than 

indicate a view on a decision, this may be unlawful bias or predetermination so it is 

important that advice is sought where this may be the case. 

Pre-determination / Bias  

Pre-determination and bias are unlawful and can make a decision unlawful. 

Predetermination means having a “closed mind”. In other words, a member has made 

his/her mind up on a decision before considering or hearing all the relevant evidence.  

Bias can also arise from a member’s relationships or interests, as well as their state of 

mind.  The Code of Conduct’s requirement to declare interests and withdraw from 

meetings prevents most obvious forms of bias, e.g. not deciding your own planning 

application.  However, members may also consider that a “non-pecuniary interest” 

PREDETERMINATION/PREDISPOSITION - 

GUIDANCE 

Page 28



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

under the Code also gives rise to a risk of what is called apparent bias. The legal test is: 

“whether the fair-minded and informed observer, having considered the facts, would 

conclude that there was a real possibility that the Committee was biased’.  A fair minded 

observer takes an objective and balanced view of the situation but Members who think 

that they have a relationship or interest that may raise a possibility of bias, should seek 

advice. 

This is a complex area and this note should be read as general guidance only. 

Members who need advice on individual decisions, should contact the Monitoring 

Officer

Page 29



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

APPENDIX 7

REQUEST FOR A DISPENSATION

Request to Monitoring Officer 

Please complete the following details and give as much information as possible (you 
can attach additional sheets of paper, if required). 

1. Please summarise the matter to which your interest  relates

2 What is the nature of your interest?

3 For which meeting(s)  or period are you seeking a dispensation?

4. Please set out in detail the reason(s) why you consider you 
should  be granted a dispensation.

Name
Signature

Date

   

When completed, this form should be sent to the Monitoring Officer

Page 30



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

Appendix 8 

Trustees and Councillors’ Duties towards the Trusts

1. Introduction 

1.1 There are a number of different roles that the Council may have in relation to the day to day 
administration and functioning of registered charities and trusts.  

1.2 The Council can find itself in any of the following roles in relation to a charitable trust:- 

1.2.1 either be appointed as a corporate trustee; 

1.2.2 appointed as a holding trustee, holding land on trust, possibly with the right to 
appoint trustees;  

1.2.3 as a party who has a right under a charity’s constitution or trust deed to appoint 
trustees to the charity’s board; or 

1.2.4 simply as a funder through the process providing grants to a registered charity.    

1.3 There are a variety of duties and obligations that arise depending on what role the Council 
has under the conveyance or instrument under which the trust arises.  

1.4 This report deals exclusively with the position where the Council is appointed as a Corporate 
Trustee of the Salt Hill Playing Field and the Langley War Memorial Field (collectively, the 
Properties and the Trusts)  

1.5 It is clear that under both conveyances of the Properties under which the Trusts arose that 
Slough Borough Council is the corporate trustee and holds the property as such. 

2. Corporate Trustees   

2.1 Councillors and Council Officers may attend meetings and deal with the Trust’s day to day 
administration and property, the capacity in which they doing so are as Councillors and 
Council Officers and not as Trustees of the above Trusts.  

2.2 Corporate trustees are liable for breaches of trust to the same extent as a natural person, but 
the cause of action that the beneficiaries of the Trusts will have is against the corporate 
trustee.    

2.3 As the corporate body is a legal and not a natural person; it acts exclusively through natural 
persons and in the case of Slough Borough Council, those are its Councillors and Council 
Officers.   

2.4 Slough Borough Council is the trustee of the charitable Trusts.  The Councillors, and indeed 
Council Officers, are not.  The Councillors and Council Officers rather manage the Trust’s 
affairs on behalf of the Council.   

2.5 When Councillors are making decisions on behalf of the Council dealing with Trust matters, 
they do not have the same responsibilities and hence liabilities as that of trustees.   

Page 31



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

3. Councillor’s Duties  

3.1 Whilst it is clear that Councillors are not trustees and hence do not have the same 
responsibilities and liabilities as a trustee, even when making decisions on behalf of the 
Council when the Council is acting as Trustee; Councillors do conduct the affairs of the Trust 
and their decision making directly affects how the Trusts are managed and could put the 
Council in breach of its duties to the Trusts. 

4. Key Duties of Trustees  

4.1 Although Councillors are not trustees under the Trusts, these duties have to be considered 
when contemplating decision making on behalf of Slough Borough Council, when it is acting 
as the corporate trustee in relation to the Trusts.   

4.2 Trustees must ensure that the Trust is carrying out its purpose for the public benefit and 
comply with their governing document and the law.  

4.3 Trustees must always act in the Trust’s best interests.  This means making balanced and 
informed decisions based on professional advice.  Trustees must deal appropriately with any 
conflicts of interest.  

4.4 Trustees must manage their Trust’s resources responsibly and this entails implementing the 
necessary financial controls and managing any risks.   

4.5 Trustees must act with reasonable care and skill and this necessitates using their 
accumulated skills and experiences and tempering it with the appropriate legal and 
professional advice. 

5. Executive Summary 

5.1 In summary, the trustee for both of the Trusts is the Slough Borough Council. 

5.2 The Councillors are not trustees and hence do not have the same responsibilities and 
liabilities as if they were individual trustees. 

5.3 The Councillors do, however, act and make key decisions on behalf of the Council, when it is 
acting in its capacity as corporate trustee on behalf of the Trusts.  

5.4 Councillors should be extra vigilant and approach Trust matters within their respective 
contexts rather than as usual Council business.  

Date: 23 August 201 

Page 32



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

PART 2: THE COMPLAINTS PROCESS           Appendix 9

Complaints against Members process is set out in the flow chart below

Appendix 1 
Complaints Procedure Flowchart�

Complaint received by 
Monitoring Officer�

Monitoring Officer 

• Acknowledges complaint within 5 
working days 

Preliminary tests: 

• Acting in capacity as a member? 

• In office at time of alleged misconduct? 

• Very minor or trivial matter? 

• Vexatious or malicious? 

• Historical? 

• Potential breach of the Code? 

• What to do with it? 

• Assessment of public interest? 

• Decision within 28 working days of 
receipt 

• Or seek additional information as 
required prior to making a decision 

Complaint considered by 
Monitoring Officer�

Complaint rejected 
with reasons�

Informal Resolution 
(Mediation, apology etc)�

Potentially criminal 
conduct/breach of other 

regulations�

Referral to Audit & Corporate Governance 
Committee for consideration�

Appointment of Investigating 
Officer and Investigation or 
Monitoring Officer Investigates�

Complaint referred to 
Standards Determination Sub-
Committee or Informal 
Resolution�

In consultation with the 
Independent Person: 
1. No further action 
2. Informal Resolution 
3. Formal Decision/Action 

Investigation Report to include: 

• Agreed facts;�

• Facts not agreed and 
corresponding conflicting 
evidence�

• Conclusion whether a breach of 
the code or not�

Standards Determination Sub-
Committee to arbitrate on facts and 
conclude whether a breach of the 
Code of Conduct has occurred. 
Any decision is made in consultation 
with the Independent Person.�

Page 33



Part 5.1 – Councillors’ Code of Conduct Council – December 2017

APPENDIX 10 

MEMBERS COMPLAINTS ASSESSMENT CRITERIA

Complaints which would not normally be referred for investigation

1. The complaint is not considered sufficiently serious to warrant investigation; or 

2. The complaint appears to be simply motivated by malice or is “tit-for-tat”; or 

3. The complaint appears to be politically motivated; or 

4. It appears that there can be no breach of the Code of Conduct; for example, that it 
relates to the Councillor’s private life or is about dissatisfaction with a Council 
decision; or 

5. It is about someone who is no longer a Councillor 

6. There is insufficient information available for a referral; or 

7. The complaint has not been received within 3 months of the alleged misconduct 
unless there are exceptional circumstances e.g. allegation of bullying, harassment 
etc. 

8. The matter occurred so long ago that it would be difficult for a fair investigation to 
be carried out; or 

9. The same, or similar, complaint has already been investigated and there is nothing 
further to be gained by seeking the sanctions available to the Audit & Corporate 
Governance Committee; or 

10. It is an anonymous complaint, unless it includes sufficient documentary evidence 
to show a significant breach of the Code of Conduct. 

11. Where the Member complained of has apologised and/or admitted making an error 
and the matter would not warrant a more serious sanction 

Complaints which may be referred to the Audit & Corporate  Governance
Committee

1. It is serous enough, if proven, to justifying the range of actions available to the 
Standards Determination Sub-Committee; or

2. There are individual acts of minor misconduct which appear to be a part of a 
continuing pattern of behaviour that is unreasonably disrupting the business of the 
Council and there is no other avenue left to deal with it other than by way of an 
investigation. 

3. When the complaint comes from a senior officer of the Council, such as the Chief 
Executive or the Monitoring Officer and it would be difficult for the Monitoring 
Officer to investigate; or 

4. The complaint is about a high profile Member such as the Leader of the Council 
and it would be difficult for the Monitoring Officer to investigate. 

5. Such other complaints as the Monitoring Officer considers it would not be 
appropriate for him to investigate. 

Page 34



SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO:           Extraordinary Council      DATE: 19th December 2017 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:   Catherine Meek 
(For all enquiries)       Head of Democratic Services 

      (01753) 875011 
 
WARD(S): All 

 

PART I 
FOR DECISION 

 

APPOINTMENT TO COMMITTEES, PANELS AND OUTSIDE BODIES 
 

1.  Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 To appoint to vacancies on various committees, panels and outside bodies and to 
inform the Council of the appointments made to casual vacancies under Procedure 
Rules as at Part 4.1 Paragraph 1.2 (vi). 

 
1.2 To receive the report of the Leader of the Council on the appointment of the Deputy 

Leader and the Cabinet. 
 

2. Recommendations  
 

 The Council is requested to resolve: 
 

(a) That appointments be made to the vacancies on Committees in accordance 
with the nominations of political groups as at Appendix A of this report. 
 

(b) That the appointments to casual vacancies on committees under Procedure 
Rules as at Appendix A of this report be noted. 

 
(c) That the appointments to outside bodies as at Appendix B of this report be 

approved. 
 
(d) That the report of the Leader on the appointment of the Deputy Leader and 

Lead Members (the Cabinet) and their portfolios be received (Appendix C). 
 
(e) That a Representative of the Slough Youth Parliament be appointed to the 

Slough Wellbeing Board and the Board’s Membership be updated 
accordingly.  

 

3. Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy and Five Year Plan Priorities 
 
Effective, transparent and equitable decision making processes are an essential 
pre-requisite to the delivery of all the Council’s priorities. 

 
4. Other implications 
 

(a) Legal Implications 
 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 35



The recommendations within this report meet legal requirements (primarily the 
Local Government Housing Act 1989 and associated regulations). 

 
The core membership of the Slough Wellbeing Board is determined by section 194 
of the Health and Social Care Act 2012.  The Leader of the Council is able to make 
further appointments to the Councillor representatives on the Board.  The Board is 
able to make further appointments to reflect the importance of the wider 
determinants of health in its locality. 

 
(b) Financial Implications 
 
There are no other workforce, financial or other implications arising from this 
administrative report. 
 

4. Supporting Information 
 

Appointments to Committees and Panels 
 
4.1 The report of the Leader of the Council on the appointment of the Cabinet, as set 

out in Appendix C, necessitates a number of changes to committees, panels and 
some outside bodies.  The changes primarily arise due to the restrictions in law or 
the Constitution of members of the Executive sitting on particular committees and 
on outside bodies where the Lead Cabinet Member would normally represent the 
authority. 

 
4.2 Meetings of the Planning Committee, Education & Children’s Services Scrutiny 

Panel, Audit & Corporate Governance Committee and Joint Parenting Panel have 
been convened in the period prior to the Extraordinary Council Meeting, therefore a 
number of appointments have been made under Procedure Rules as at Part 4.1 
Paragraph 1.2 (vi) to the casual vacancies created and the Council is requested to 
note the appointments.  These are set out fully in Appendix A and are summarised 
as follows: 

 

• Joint Parenting Panel – Councillors Bedi, Arvind Dhaliwal and Matloob 

• Planning Committee – Councillor Carter 

• Audit & Corporate Governance Committee – Councillor Nazir 

• Education & Children’s Services Scrutiny Panel – Councillors Arvind Dhaliwal, 
Matloob and Sharif.  Non-voting Co-opted Head Teacher Representative – 
Deborah Rainer. 

 
4.3 The Council is requested to consider and approve the following appointments to 

committees and panels, set out fully in Appendix A and summarised below: 
 

• Overview & Scrutiny Committee – Councillor Chohan (Chair) 

• Heath Scrutiny Panel – Councillor Ajaib 

• Neighbourhoods & Community Services Scrutiny Panel – Councillors Parmar, 
Bal and Sharif. 

 
Slough Wellbeing Board 

 
4.4 For Council’s that operate executive arrangements, the Health & Social Care Act 

2012 states that the Leader of the Council may nominate the councillor(s) to 

Page 36



represent the authority on the Board.  At present, the sole councillor representative 
on the Board is the Cabinet Member for Health & Social Care. 
 

4.5 The Leader of the Council has confirmed that he has also nominated the Deputy 
Leader of the Council (Councillor Hussain) to the Board.  Councillor Hussain was 
elected at Chair of the Slough Wellbeing Board for 2017/18 and will continue to 
serve this term of office.  Councillor representation will be reviewed at the end of the 
municipal year.  The Council is requested to endorse this nomination. 
 

4.6 At its meeting on 15th November 2017, the Slough Wellbeing Board agreed to 
recommend that a Slough Youth Parliament representative be invited to join the 
Board.  Whilst the core membership of the Wellbeing Board is set out in legislation, 
it is able to make additional appointments of individuals or partners where it 
believes they can make a positive contribution to its activity.  The Council is 
requested to approve the recommendation. 
 
Outside Bodies 
 

4.7 The Council is requested to consider the appointments to committees, panels and 
outside bodies as set out in this report, primarily where the Lead Cabinet Member 
would normally represent the authority. 

 
5. Conclusion 
 
5.1 The Council is requested to note and approve the appointments to committees, 

panels and outside bodies as set out in this report. 
 
6. Appendices 

 
A Summary of Appointments to Committees and Panels 
B Summary of Appointments to Outside Bodies 
C Report of the Leader – Cabinet appointments 
 

7. Background Papers - 
 

None. 
 

Page 37



APPENDIX A 
EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL, 19TH DECEMBER 2017 
 
SUMMARY OF APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES AND PANELS 
 
 
Appointments made to casual vacancies under Procedure Rule as at Part 4.1 Paragraph 
1.2 (vi) for the Council to note: 
 

 Current/previous 
appointment 

Proposed appointment(s) 

Audit & Corporate 
Governance 
 

Sadiq and Swindlehurst Nazir + 1 vacancy 

Joint Parenting Panel  Carter, Hussain and Pantelic Bedi, Arvind Dhaliwal, 
Matloob 
 

Planning Committee Swindlehurst Carter 

Education & Children’s 
Services Scrutiny Panel 

Anderson, Carter and 
Pantelic 
 
Non-voting Co-opted Head 
Teacher Representative – 
Maggie Stacey 

Arvind Dhaliwal, Matloob 
and Sharif 
 
Non-voting Co-opted Head 
Teacher Representative – 
Deborah Rainer 

 
 
 
Appointments that the Council is requested to approve: 
 

 Current/previous 
appointment 

Proposed appointment(s) 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

Sadiq (Chair) Chohan (Chair) 

Health Scrutiny Panel Pantelic Ajaib 

Neighbourhoods & 
Community Services 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

Anderson, Mann, 
Swindlehurst 

Bal, Parmar and Sharif 

Joint East Berkshire Health 
Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Pantelic Ajaib 

Slough Wellbeing Board N/A Hussain 
 
Slough Youth Parliament 
representative 

 

Page 38



APPENDIX B 
EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL, 19TH DECEMBER 2017 
 
SUMMARY OF APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 
 
 

 Current/previous 
appointment 

Proposed appointment(s) 

LEVEL 1 
  

Berkshire Local Transport 
Body 
 

Matloob Carter 

Frimley Health NHS 
Foundation Trust 
 

Hussain Pantelic 

Board of Development 
Initiative for Slough Housing 
 

Munawar and Ajaib Swindlehurst and Nazir 

Slough Local Asset Backed 
Vehicle (LABV) Board 
 

Vacant Ajaib 

LEVEL 2 
  

Parking & Traffic Regulation 
Outside London Joint 
Committee (PATROLJC) 
 

Matloob Carter 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



APPENDIX C 
 
EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL, 19TH DECEMBER 2017 
 
REPORT OF THE LEADER – CABINET APPOINTMENTS 
 
 

Councillor Swindlehurst Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Regeneration & Strategy 
 

Councillor Hussain Deputy Leader of the Council and 
Cabinet Member for Digital 
Transformation & Performance 
 

Councillor Anderson Cabinet Member for Environment & 
Leisure 
 

Councillor Carter Cabinet Member for Planning & 
Transport 
 

Councillor Mann Cabinet Member for Regulation & 
Consumer Protection 
 

Councillor Nazir Cabinet Member for Corporate Finance 
& Housing 
 

Councillor Pantelic Cabinet Member for Health & Social 
Care 
 

Councillor Sadiq Cabinet Member for Children & 
Education 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



 

 

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

 

REPORT TO: Council DATE: 19th December 2017 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: Surjit Nagra Service Lead – People  
(For all enquiries) (01753) 875727 

 

WARDS: All  
PART I 

FOR DECISION 
 

DESIGNATION OF INTERIM MONITORING OFFICER 
 

1 Purpose of Report 

 

This report seeks to designate the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 

 
2 Recommendation 
 

The Council is requested to resolve that Hugh Peart is designated as the Council’s 
Interim Monitoring Officer with effect from 1st January, 2018. 

 
3 Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy Priorities 

 

The Monitoring Officer, along with the Head of Paid Service and the Section 151 Officer 
perform the Council’s principal Statutory Officer functions. These roles are key to 
ensuring lawfulness, fairness, probity and general good governance that support the 
Council in achieving its aims. It is important that they work effectively together yet 
maintain appropriate independence and that the roles are undertaken by adequately 
skilled and experienced staff supported by appropriate resources. 

 
4 Other Implications 

 

(a) Financial 

 

The cost of this arrangement will be contained within existing budgets in the Finance 
& Resources Directorate.  

 
(b) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications 

 

The designation of a Monitoring Officer is a statutory requirement under Section 5 
of the Local Government & Housing Act 1989. The Council has the right to 
designate and appoint the Monitoring Officer and to give three months notice to the 
Monitoring Officer if it wishes to re-designate the post. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 41



 

5 Supporting Information 
 
5.1 At its meeting on 27th September, 2016 Council appointed Linda Walker as its 

Interim Monitoring Officer.  Linda Walker subsequently appointed Hugh Peart as 
Deputy Monitoring Officer.  
 
At its meeting on 28th November Council received a proposal for Sushil Thobani to 
be designated as the Monitoring Officer. This was deferred to enable consideration 
to be given to whether the proposed arrangements were sufficiently robust and well 
resourced to deal with the volume of work associated with the role. 
 
The workload of the current Interim Monitoring Officer has been particularly high 
since her appointment. It is hoped that this will reduce over time but at present there 
is still a considerable amount of work to be completed. Sushil Thobani has not held 
the role of Monitoring Officer before and the workload of his post is also extremely 
high, even disregarding Monitoring Officer duties. It is considered that a period of 
time in which he is not required to carry out the Monitoring Officer duties will allow 
him to step into the role in time and be fully effective in the post.  

 

5.2 It is therefore now proposed to designate Hugh Peart as Slough’s Interim 
Monitoring Officer.  Hugh has a wide experience of Monitoring Officer issues, and 
there is capacity within the practice he runs, HB Public Law, to deal with the current 
work volume.  Since his appointment as Deputy Monitoring Officer, Hugh has 
commenced a review of Slough’s Governance which is already leading to 
improvements. 

 
5.3 This arrangement will be kept under review to ensure Slough is best served and to 

ensure seamless working within the wider Governance Team. 
 
5.4 The Council’s Monitoring Officer has a number of functions which are defined within 

the Council’s Constitution. These include; ensuring lawfulness and fairness of 
decision making, supporting the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee, 
receiving reports, conducting investigations, ensuring access to information, 
advising whether executive decisions are within the budget and policy framework 
and maintaining the Constitution. 

 
5.5 If designated, the Interim Monitoring Officer will nominate Sushil Thobhani as 

Deputy Monitoring Officer. 
 

5.6 Linda Walker will remain employed by Slough until 31st January, 2018 to complete 
current matters and ensure a proper  handover. 

 

6 Conclusion 
 

The role of the Monitoring Officer is an important element in the Council’s structure 
and processes. The arrangements outlined in this report will ensure that there is 
both the experience and capacity to fully discharge the role. 

 

7 Background Papers 
 

None. 

Page 42



 

 

 
SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO:  Extraordinary Council  DATE: 19th December 2017 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:    Linda Walker 

Monitoring Officer 
 (For all enquiries)  01753 875300 
    
WARDS:     All 

PART I 
FOR DECISION 

 

HEAD OF PAID SERVICE AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE ARRANGEMENTS  
 

1. Purpose of Report 
 
 To seek Council’s agreement to changes to the current interim Head of Paid 

Service arrangements, to approve arrangements for the appointment of an Interim 
Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service, to agree to an independent review of the 
Chief Executive appointment process, and to commence the permanent recruitment 
to the post. 

 
2. Recommendation/s 
  

The Council is requested to resolve: 
  

 (a) that the temporary arrangement whereby Roger Parkin acts as interim 
Head of Paid Service ends on 31st December 2017; 

  

 (b) that the Director of Finance and Resources be authorised to make the 
appointment of an interim Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service 
from January 2018 following consultation with the Group Leaders and 
UKIP member; 

  

(c) that the Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development (CIPD) 
carry out an independent review of the 2017 Chief Executive 
appointment process with the attached terms of reference.  Its report 
should inform the permanent recruitment to the Chief Executive post, 
and be published for information at the full Council meeting in January 
2018; and 

 

(d) that the job description, person specification and terms and conditions 
of the Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service post as set out at 
Appendix B be endorsed and that the Service Lead (People) be 
authorised to make minor alterations as necessary following 
consultation with the Group Leaders and to commence the permanent 
recruitment to the post of Slough’s Chief Executive. 

 
3. The Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy, the JSNA and the Five Year Plan 
 
3.1 The Chief Executive as Head of Paid service is the most senior officer in the 

Council and as such the appointee has key responsibilities in relation to the delivery 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 43



 

 

of the Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy, JSNA and Five Year Plan, as well as 
providing leadership in the strategic management of the council and to support 
members with the objective of achieving its vision, priorities, aims and ambition for 
Slough. The Head of Paid Service needs to ensure that the Council is organised 
efficiently and effectively to deliver excellent customer focused services. 
 

4. Other Implications  
 

(a) Financial 
 

The costs associated with the interim arrangements are included within the 
existing staffing budget. The costs of recruitment and external support for the 
permanent recruitment will be charged to the Chief Executive’s budget 
codes. 

 
(b) Human Rights Act and other Legal Implications 

 

There is a legal requirement under section 4 (1) (a) Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 for the Council to designate one of its officers as the Head 
of Paid Service. Under Paragraph 4(1) of Schedule 1 part II Local Authorities 
(Standing Orders) (England) regulations 2001, Council approval must be 
obtained before an offer of appointment is made to an officer designated as 
the Head of Paid Service (in this case an interim).  

 
The Council’s Constitution (Part 4, section 7 Paragraph 3.1) states that 
Council will approve the appointment of the Head of Paid Service following 
the recommendation of such an appointment by a committee or sub-
committee of the council. That committee or sub-committee must include at 
least one member of the Cabinet. This is a mandatory requirement imposed 
by the Local Authorities Standing Orders Regulations 2001 and we interpret 
that as being applied to any interim appointment.  

 
The Council’s recruitment procedures comply with the Regulations issued by 
the Government and the requirements of the Constitution. These procedures 
comply with the requirements of the Human Rights Act. The Council’s 
recruitment processes ensure equality of opportunity for all.  

 
5. Supporting Information 
 
 Interim Head of Paid Service  
 
5.1 Roger Parkin was appointed Interim Head of Paid Service by Council on 31st 

January 2017, when arrangements were agreed for the permanent recruitment to 
the post of Chief Executive.  

 
5.2 At its meeting on 28th November, Council decided not to appoint Mr Parkin as its 

Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service, and it is proposed to end his interim role 
on 31st December 2017.  

 
5.3 It is proposed that the Council appoints a new Interim Chief Executive and Head of 

Paid Service pending the permanent appointment to the post. The Council will be 
seeking an external candidate with successful experience as a Chief Executive in a 
similar context.  

Page 44



 

 

 
5.4 In order to ensure this process is both speedy and transparent, it is proposed that 

the Director of Finance and Resources be authorised to appoint an interim chief 
executive and head of paid service following consultation with the Leaders of both 
parties and the UKIP member.   The appointment will be reported to Council for 
information on 30th January 2018.  

 
5.5 As is usual in the absence of the Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service, 

Members of the corporate management Team will provide cover for the role on a 
rotating weekly basis until the new appointment takes effect. This arrangement is 
not expected to extend beyond the 30th January 2018.  

 
 Independent Review  
 
5.6 Following the recent recruitment process for the Chief Executive concerns were 

raised by Members regarding the independence and rigour of the process.  
Accordingly an independent review is proposed which needs to be concluded in a 
timely manner so as to inform, but not delay, the permanent recruitment to the post 
of Chief Executive. 

 
5.7 The proposed Terms of Reference for the review are set out in Appendix A  
 
5.8 It is proposed that the Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development (CIPD) 

should conduct the review. The CIPD sets professional standards and support 
OD/HR professionals to make a real impact on the work and working lives of the 
people and organisations they work with.  They provide independent research and 
insights and influence policy and practice to ensure that work benefits everyone - 
making it a trusted adviser to individuals, employers, media and policy makers  

 
5.9 The review report and recommendations will be brought back to Council on 30th   

January 2018 for information. 
 
 Permanent Recruitment  
 
5.10 In order to expedite the process, it is proposed to delegate the process to be 

followed for the permanent recruitment to the post of Slough’s Chief Executive to 
the Service Lead – People, following consultation with the Group Leaders.  The 
recruitment will take into account the recommendations of the independent review 
above, and be based upon the Role Profile for the post at appendix B. 

 
5.11 In accordance with the Constitution, the Appointments Sub Committee will make a 

recommendation for appointment to the Council on the conclusion of the recruitment 
process. 

 

6 Background Papers 
 

Appendix A  Terms of Reference for Review into recruitment to the post of Chief   
Executive 

 
Appendix B. Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service - Job Description, Person 

Specification and Terms and Conditions 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Independent Review of Chief Executive Recruitment Process 

 

Terms of Reference: 

The Council requires an independent review be undertaken into the recent Chief Executive 

Recruitment Process. This independent review will make recommendations to ensure any future 

recruitment processes are robust, transparent and acknowledged as fair by all Members of the 

Council 

The review will examine in particular: 

• The selection of the Appointment Sub-Committee’s membership; 

• Training for Appointment Sub Committee Members; 

• Sourcing external recruitment agency; 

• The timescale for undertaking the entire recruitment process; 

• The longlisting and shortlisting processes; 

• Use of psychometric tests; 

• OD / HR involvement in the process; 

• The role of the Appointment Sub-Committee in the recruitment decision making process; 

• The role of Cabinet Members not included on the Appointment Sub-Committee; and 

• The role of all other Council Members not included on the Appointments Sub-Committee. 

Who will undertake the review? 

The Chartered Institute for Personnel and Development (CIPD), the professional body for HR and 

Development, will be approached to provide a suitable independent reviewer. 

Who will oversee the review? 

The Leader of the Council, the Leader of the Conservative group and Cllr Coad will oversee the 

review with support from the Monitoring Officer and Service Lead for People. 

When and where will the findings be reported? 

The review needs to be completed in time for a final report, and associated recommendations, to be 

published at the Full Council meeting on 30 January 2018. 

How much will the review cost? 

This is unknown at present, however all costs will be met from existing Council budgets. 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 

JOB DESCRIPTION 

JOB TITLE:  CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

RESPONSIBLE TO:   The council, through the leader of the council 

RESPONSIBLE FOR:  Strategic management  
    Leadership including responsibilities as head of paid services  

    Partnership and community development  

    Resource management  
  
    Working with members  

    Equality and diversity 

MAIN PURPOSE OF JOB:  

• To provide leadership in the strategic management of the council and to support 
Members with the objective of achieving its vision, priorities, aims and ambition for 
Slough 

• To be the head of paid service and ensure that the council is organised efficiently and 
effectively to deliver excellent customer focused services.  

• To enhance the reputation of the Council with residents, businesses and other 
stakeholders 

MAIN RESPONSIBILITIES:  

Strategic management  

1. To ensure that the council’s vision, priorities and aims are made a reality by providing 
a clear sense of direction, optimism and purpose and by marshalling the resources of 
the whole organisation to achieve these ends.  

2. To be the council’s principal adviser on corporate strategy by setting a clear framework 
for the development and achievement of corporate policies and objectives and through 
working effectively with members through the council’s democratic structure. 

Page 49



Leadership  

3. To be the head of paid service and to lead the corporate management team so that 
positive contributions are made by directors in the development and implementation of 
policies that will optimise service delivery to the people of Slough. 

4. To inspire, empower and develop the council’s workforce to secure a real senses of 
ownership of its vision and priorities, seek continuous improvement, encourage cross-
council working and move decision making and responsibilities as close as possible to 
the point of service delivery. 

5. To develop and maintain a flexible and focused organisation which is able to embrace, 
absorb and respond positively to changing requirements and priorities. 

Partnership and community development  

6. To lead the council’s commitment to working with a range of stakeholders with the aim 
of maximising positive and sustainable investment through the Heart of Slough project 
and other initiatives.  

7. To develop and maintain effective systems of consultation, community involvement 
and partnership working to achieve the council’s community strategy.  

8. To promote the interests and image of the council and enhance its influence in 
constructive relationships with key stakeholders in the community, in government and 
other public bodies, the voluntary sector and in the business community.  

Resource management  

9. To ensure that effective organisational structures and performance management 
systems are in place to plan, delivery and monitor strategic and service objectives. 

10. To plan and keep under review the council’s budget strategy and other significant 
financial funding arrangements in line with the priorities agreed by the council; to 
ensure that budgets are monitored and controlled and that there is clear accountability.  

Working with members  

11. To have overall responsibility for the management of relationships between elected 
member, political groups and officers by establishing a clear understand of roles and 
by developing and maintain clearly understood procedures for converting policies into 
action within the constraints of propriety and legality.  

12. To provide the leadership, communication and action will exemplify the council’s 
values and commitment to value diversity, ensure equality of opportunity and 
strengthen cohesion in the community. 

Page 50



Person Specification 

Description Essential/ 
Desirable

Method
Application
Interview, 
Test 

Experience 

1.1  

1.2 

1.3 

1.4 

1.5 

1.6 

1.7 

Significant experience as a senior director or as a 
Chief Executive in local government or similar 
public sector organisation with a track record of 
success as a senior  
manager  

Successful corporate leadership with significant 
track record in strategic planning and 
performance management leading improved 
outcomes for local people  

Successful working with elected members or 
stakeholder and in building relationships of trust 

A track record of achievement in partnership 
working with a wide range of stakeholders  

Establishing effective relationships with 
multicultural communities and in dealing 
confidently with diversity issues  

Successfully leading organisational change to 
achieve major improvements  

Success in financial, people and resource 
management of a significant scale and complexity 

Essential 

Essential 

Essential 

Essential 

Essential 

Essential 

Essential 

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

A/I 

A/I 

A/I 

A/I 

A/I 

A/I 

A/I 

2.1 

2.2 

2.3 

2.4 

A clear understanding of the major challenges in 
local government and of the current social policy 
issues to be faced in a multicultural urban 
environment  

Strategic planning and performance management 
systems including external inspections  

Legislative and financial frameworks within which 
local authorities operate  

High level of understanding and commitment to 
diversity issues.  

Essential 

Essential 

Essential 

Essential 

�

�

�

�

I/T 

I/T 

I 

I/T 

Page 51



Description Essential/ 
Desirable

Method
Application
Interview, 
Test 

Knowledge 

3.1 

3.2 

3.3 

3.4 

3.5 

3.6 

3.7 

3.8 

3.9 

3.10 

Has highlight developed leadership skills to 
inspire commitment from team’s individuals 
throughout the council. 

Has high personal credibility and political 
sensitivity to work with elected members and a 
wide range of key stakeholders.  

Demonstrates a well developed strategic 
perspective that can be applied to achieve results 
in a broad range of corporate, community and 
services issues. 

Has the ability to plan, organise and review 
corporate systems and structures to deliver 
results and achieve continuous improvement.  

Can lead major changes in an inspirational way.  

Communicates clearly and effectively to a range 
of audiences and is confident in dealing with the 
media.  

High interpersonal, influencing and persuasive 
skills and is a good negotiator.   

Can build effective partnerships with a wide range 
of stakeholders.  

Shows sound judgement, balanced decision 
making and had good analytical skills.  

Committed, robust, resilient and has the drive and 
energy to achieve results within a challenging and 
complex environment 

Essential 

Essential 

Essential 

Essential 

Essential 

Essential 

Essential 

Essential 

Essential 

Essential 

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

I/T 

 I/T 

 I/T  

I/T  

I/T  

I/T  

I/T  

I/T 

 I/T 

I/T 

Key competencies

4.1 

4.2 

4.3 

4.4 

Degree or equivalent qualification  

An appropriate professional qualification  

Management qualification  

Evidence of continuing professional development 

Essential 

Desirable 

Essential 

Essential 

�

�

�

A 

A 

A 

Page 52



Main Terms and Conditions Of Service 

PERMANENT STAFF 

DATE:   January 2017   CLOSING DATE:  xx January 2017

DIRECTORATE: Chief Executive 

JOB TITLE:  Chief Executive  REF NUMBER:  xx-xxxx 

This post is subject to the Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) for chief executives of local authorities 
terms and conditions as supplement by Slough Borough Council local agreements.  

Salary

The chief executive grade consists of 4 incremental points, £132,544, £140,365, £149,121 and 
£159,054 and is fully inclusive of all additional elements including local weighting.  

Payment of Salary  

Your salary will be paid monthly in twelve equal payments into a bank, giro bank or building society 
account of your choice. This will be on or about the last working day of the month. 

Annual increments are paid on 1
st
 April each year subject to 6 months service and satisfactory 

performance against key tasks endorsed by the Leader of the council.  

Annual Leave   

Our annual leave is generous and the longer you work for us and local government the more you get.  
You are entitled to 30 days per annum per complete holiday year.   The annual leave provision is 
increased to 32 days inclusive after 5 years service. 

The annual leave year runs from 1 April to 31 March. 

The yearly entitlement is based on full time staff; for part time staff the entitlement is pro rata.  

You are also entitled to 8 public and bank holidays, which is pro rata for part time staff.  

Hours of Work 

37 hours a week.   However, the nature of the post and its level of seniority and responsibilities are 
such that the post holder will be expected to undertake additional hours including evening and 
weekend working as necessary to fulfil the requirements of the role.  

The Council supports a range of flexible working arrangements to promote work-life balance 
dependant on the operational needs of each service.

Pension

Unless you specifically opt out in writing, you will automatically become a member of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).   Further details are available from the council or you can link 
to the website for a Guide for New Employees to the pension fund on  
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/berks-pension/index.htm .    

Page 53



The main benefits of being a scheme member can be found under http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/berks-
pension/LGS1B(0411)EmployerShortGuide.doc

You may choose to remain in or arrange your own personal pension plan (PPP), or remain in the 
State Earnings Related Pension Scheme (SERPS).   

Allowances 

Relocation package: 
You will be eligible to receive an allowance under the council’s relocation assistance scheme to cover 
removal and relocation expenses up to a maximum of £8,000 should you need to relocate to take up 
this post i.e. to move from outside a 26 mile radius of the council offices.  

Mileage allowances: 
The Council will reimburse all business mileage undertaken, whether inside or outside the borough, in 
accordance with HM Revenue and Customs rates.  Currently this will be paid at 45p/mile for the first 
10,000 business miles in the tax year and 25p for each business mile over 10,000 miles in the tax 
year.  All mileage claims need to be supported by VAT receipts. 

Business mileage undertaken by motorcycle or bicycle, whether inside or outside the borough, will be 
paid in accordance with HM Revenue and Customs rates, i.e. for motorcycles 24p per mile (claims to 
be supported by VAT receipts) and for bicycles (claims to be submitted) 20p per mile. 

These provisions are subject to review, variation and discontinuance at the Council’s discretion and/or 
in the light of operational needs. 

All employees who use their cars for official business must ensure that their vehicle insurance policy 
is suitably endorsed for official and authorised Council business use. 

Evening Meetings: 
The salary of the chief executive covers the requirement for attendance at evening meetings and at 
other unsocial times.  

Professional subscriptions: 
The Council will reimburse you for the cost of one professional subscription per annum if agreed by 
your Director as relevant and necessary to the fulfilment of your duties. 

Other schemes 

Other payments may be made for additional work, outstanding performance, temporary cover for 
senior staff and other special circumstances.  

Smoke Free 

Slough Borough Council is a Smoke Free Council and smoking is not permitted within any Council 
premises, non-residential buildings and Council Vehicles.

Health Assessment 

The Council believes that screening new employees is an important management process and 
therefore you will be asked to complete a Health Assessment Questionnaire, however this is not a 
condition of employment.  As part of this process we may ask you to take a medical examination if the 
council's medical adviser feels it is necessary to the position.  Certain key members of staff are 
medically examined periodically.  The council will pay for this. 

Page 54



Probationary period 

During the first six months of your appointment you will be covered by the council’s probationary 
policy and procedure.  Your work performance will be monitored closely and you will be expected to 
demonstrate your suitability for the post.  

Political restrictions 

This post is politically restricted under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.   

This means that you can be a member of a political party but cannot hold office for that party or stand 
for election as a councillor or MP. 

Period of notice 

3 months 

Emergency planning 

Due to the seniority of this post you will be required to assist in providing an effective response on the 
part of the authority to many major civil emergencies that may arise.   This involves a range of co-
coordinative, liaison and communication tasks working both within the council’s offices and at other 
locations and can involve stand-by or call-out on a roster basis.   Training will be provided to enable 
this duty to be fulfilled.   This requirement is reflected in the grading of the post and no further 
remuneration will be payable.  

Page 55



General Employment Information 

Data Protection Act 
The information you provide will be processed in accordance with the Data Protection Acts 1998 and 
any subsequent legislation.  

Equality Act 2010 
This Act protects people with disabilities from unlawful discrimination.  The Council operates a 
“Guaranteed Interview Scheme” for applicants who declare they have a ‘disability’ (as defined by the 
Equality Act 2010. Any ‘disabled’ applicant who meets the essential criteria for the job will be offered 
an interview.  

Definition of Disability 
The definition of disability, as outlined in the Equality Act 2010 is as follows: 
“A physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long term adverse effect on a person’s 
ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities”.

To be protected under the Act, 

• An individual must have, or have had, an impairment which can be physical or mental 

• It must have adverse effects which are substantial, that is something more than minor or 
trivial.   

• It needs to be long term, i.e. the impairment has lasted or is likely to last in total for at least 
twelve months or is likely to last for the rest of the life of the person affected 

And 

• It must affect normal day-to-day activities at work on a regular basis 

Equal Opportunities in Employment 
Slough Borough Council is committed to being an employer of choice.  Our aim is to ensure that no 
job applicant or employee receives less favourable treatment on grounds of age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage or civil partnership, maternity and pregnancy, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation.  These are protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010.  In addition, the 
Council also recognises trade union membership and activity or any other reason which cannot be 
shown to be justified which will also result in grounds for unfair discrimination.   

Recruitment and selection criteria, procedures and practices will be kept under regular review to 
ensure that individuals are selected or promoted on merit.  All employees will be given equal 
opportunity and, where appropriate, training to progress within the Council. 

Local authorities have a legal responsibility to promote Equality of Opportunity.  The Council is 
committed to the use of those statutory provisions which permit Positive Action to improve recruitment 
and access to training where disadvantaged groups are under-represented.  In particular the Council 
aims for its workforce to be representative of the local population. 

The Council continually monitors this policy to assess its effectiveness. 

Feedback 
Anyone who applies for a job with Slough Borough Council and is unsuccessful can arrange for verbal 
feedback to be given by contacting the Chair of the shortlisting / interview panel. 

Interview Expenses 
Reasonable out of pocket expenses will be reimbursed when attending for interview; travelling 
expenses are limited to 2nd class rail/bus fare.  Mileage is reimbursed at a rate of 19.8p per mile.    
Candidates will be sent their expenses by cheque after the interview.  If a candidate is invited from 
overseas, travel expenses will be calculated from the nearest airport/ seaport in this country.  

Page 56



Pre-Employment Screening 
It is our policy to carry out checks to confirm the details on the application form/CV.  False information 
which results in an appointment will render the individual liable to dismissal without notice. 

• Proof of Qualifications 
You will be asked to produce certificates confirming your qualifications or membership of 
professional bodies that are stated in your application form/CV. 

• References 
References offered will be taken up.  We reserve the right to contact any other previous employer 
for a reference.  We will also take into consideration relevant information received from any 
source.  This may include information held by the authority, for example in social care or 
education, and information received from other external authorities or bodies. 

• Work Permit 
Under the Asylum and Immigration Act 1996, it is a criminal offence to employ anyone who is not 
entitled to live or work in the United Kingdom.  You will be asked to submit original proof of 
identification (photocopies are not acceptable), such as a birth certificate, national insurance 
number, passport or driving licence.  You will be asked to submit all marriage/relevant certificates 
in cases where you have changed your name, and previous address details.   

Childcare Vouchers 
Computershare Voucher Services (CVS) 

Childcare vouchers are a Government approved tax-efficient way of paying for childcare.  They can 
be used for children of all ages (up to 16) to pay for any Qualifying Childcare in a wide range of 
childcare settings.     

The table below shows how much tax and NI you can save each month if you order the maximum 
amount eligible for your tax band (figures published 2013): 

If you pay Basic rate 
tax 

If you pay Higher rate 
tax 

If you pay Additional 
rate tax 

Maximum monthly 
voucher value 

£243 £124 £110 

Tax Rate 
NI 

20% 
12% 

40% 
2% 

45% 
2% 

Tax savings 
Ni Savings 

£48.60 
£29.16 

£49.60 
£2.48 

£49.50 
£2.20 

Total monthly savings 
£77.76 £52.08 £51.70 

For further, detailed information, please log onto:
www.computersharevoucherservices.com/parentpack

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 59

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 61

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Councillors' Code of Conduct
	CodeofConductAppendix

	3 Appointments to Committees, Panels and Outside Bodies
	4 Designation of Monitoring Officer
	5 Head of Paid Service and Chief Executive Arrangements
	HoPS and Chief Executive Arrangements Appendix A
	HoPS and Chief Executive Arrangements Appendix B

	7 Approval of Severance Payment to Interim Chief Executive
	CE Severance Payment Appx A


